
Page 1 of 6 

 

ROCKPORT SELECT BOARD  

MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 12, 2019 

6:30 P.M. 

GEOFFREY C. PARKER COMMUNITY MEETING ROOM 

ROCKPORT OPERA HOUSE 

 

Present: Vice Chair Denise Kennedy-Munger, Douglas Cole, and Jeffrey Hamilton.  

Absent: was Mark Kelley and Chair Debra Hall.   Also, present: William Post, Town 

Manager; Megan Brackett, Finance Director; Linda Greenlaw, Town Clerk; and members 

of the public 

 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – Vice Chair Kennedy-Munger called the meeting 

to order at 6:30 P.M. 

 

II. PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Receive Public Comments on a New Liquor License Application for Trapt, 

Inc. (Tiffany Ford) at 461 Commercial Street 

 

Vice Chair Kennedy-Munger opened the public hearing at 6:31 p.m.  

 

Applicant Ford stated that she owns the building and has gone before the Planning Board 

to get approval to operate her business at 461 Commercial Street.  The business will only 

serve alcohol downstairs and not in the escape rooms and will serve beer and malt, no 

hard alcohol.  The business will be open until 10:00 - 10:30p.m. on Friday and Saturday 

nights and other nights they will close earlier. 

 

No one spoke for or against the license. 

 

Vice Chair Kennedy-Munger closed the hearing at 6:35 p.m. 

 

III. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT/UPDATE – see attached 

 

Town Manager Post confirmed with MDOT that MDOT will not paint the Pascal Avenue 

bridge since it is going to be replaced sometime after 2022. 

 

Board Member Cole asked what the role of the Select Board is regarding the 

development of the West Rockport Fire Station.  He then asked if during the design 

period, shouldn’t someone on the Board attend the meetings. Town Manager Post 

answered that the Board can certainly have that discussion when the process is started. 

 

Town Manager Post stated that we are looking at $75,000 for our part of the budget for 

the Walker Park Seawall. Board Member Cole asked what it would look like. Town 

Manager Post explained that not much excavation will be involved with the project.  The 



 Rockport Select Board Meeting Minutes 

 Tuesday, November 12, 2019 

 

Page 2 of 6 

 

materials used will be two different kinds of rock and filter fabric.  The Town is looking 

for grant opportunities. 

 

Town Manager Post stated that the Town has received a payment of $9,953 in lieu of 

taxes from Maine Media Workshop.  Board Member Cole stated that historically the 

Select Board has accepted the donation from Maine Media Workshop. Town Manager 

Post clarified that the payment from Maine Media was not a donation but a payment in 

lieu of taxes, and the internal policy covers donations that must be accepted by the Board, 

but not in lieu of taxes payments. 

 

 

Town Manager Post reported that the flooding at the Opera House was near the back-

storage closet.  Thanks to Opera House Manager Weber, Fire Chief Peasley and Public 

Works Director Young, there was not a lot of damage. There were three eights of an inch 

of water covering the floor.  The flooring was not damaged, but there was some damage 

to the ductwork insulation and that will need to be replaced. 

 

 

Board Member Hamilton remarked that he had received two monthly reports from the 

department heads.  He appreciates the detail and insightfulness of the reports. Town 

Manager Post stated that his plan is to furnish reports from all department heads to the 

Select Board each month.  He feels that it is important to keep the Board informed of 

what is happening in each department. 

  

IV. PUBLIC INPUT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS – None this evening 

 

V. AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA – None this meeting 

 

VI. ACTION ITEMS 

 

a. Act on Liquor License Application for Trapt, Inc 

 

Board Member Cole moved that the Board approve the liquor license for Trapt, 

Inc. as presented.  Board Member Hamilton seconded the motion.  VOTE:  3 FOR, 

0 OPPOSED 

 

Board Member Cole stated for the record, his job was made easier because of the 

efficient way the application was done, complete with drawings and a recommendation 

from the police chief.   

 

b. Act on Appointment of Alternate Member for Planning Board 

 

Applicant Victoria Condon gave some background information on her qualifications for 

serving on the Planning Board.  She has been a real estate broker since 2003, is a small 

business owner and is raising a family.  She wants to contribute, collaborate and provide 

a new voice on the Planning Board. 



 Rockport Select Board Meeting Minutes 

 Tuesday, November 12, 2019 

 

Page 3 of 6 

 

Board Member Cole stated that he welcomes a new face for committee work.  He also 

stated there may be times when she will need to recuse herself from participating on 

agenda items because of her work in real estate. 

 

Planning Board Chair Joe Sternowski stated that she is a great candidate and he is glad to 

have the opportunity to work with her. 

 

Board Member Hamilton moved that the Board appoint Victoria Condon to the 

Planning Board as an alternate with a term expiring June 30, 2022.  Board Member 

Cole seconded the motion.  VOTE:  3 FOR, 0 OPPOSED 

 

c. Act on Tax Abatement #24-2018 for BB&T Commercial Equipment Capital  

 

Vice Chair Kennedy-Munger explained that the lessor was assessed the tax and that it 

should have been assessed to the lessee; she also stated that it is her understanding that 

the Town will assess the lessee, so even though the 2018 tax payment will be abated to 

the lessor, the Town will be made whole with 2018 and 2019 tax payments from the 

lessee.   

 

Board Member Hamilton stated that it appears that Assessor Leichtman has already 

abated the 2019 taxes and this abatement is for 2018. 

 

Board Member Cole moved that the Board approve Tax Abatement #24-2018 for 

BB & T Commercial Equipment in the amount of $545.11 plus interest.  Board 

Member Hamilton seconded the motion.  VOTE:  3 FOR, 0 OPPOSED 

 

d. Act on Reserve Accounts Policy 

 

Town Manager Post reported that the policy has been revised and replaces the prior one 

approved in February of 2017.  It is more readable and easier to understand.  Staff added 

the Safety Reserve, the Parks and Beautification Reserve, the Fire Department Hose 

Reserve, and Turn out Gear Reserve accounts.  Appropriate descriptions of the new 

accounts were also added to the policy. 

 

Board Member Cole asked if the Harbor Land Acquisitions- Kononen Park (#10) could 

be combined with the new Parks and Beautification Reserve Account. Finance Director 

Brackett stated that she was not sure if that is a possibility.  She would have to look at the 

original intent of that reserve account.  Nothing substantive was changed in the policy. 

   

Board Member Hamilton moved the Board approve the Rockport Reserve Accounts 

Policy as presented.  Board Member Cole seconded the motion.   VOTE:  3 FOR, 0 

OPPOSED  

 

VII. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 

a. Update on LED Streetlight Project 



 Rockport Select Board Meeting Minutes 

 Tuesday, November 12, 2019 

 

Page 4 of 6 

 

Town Manager Post stated that he had provided paperwork to the Board with information 

on the LED Streetlight Project.  The Board needs to decide on the number of decorative 

lights that will be purchased and installed.   

 

Board Member Hamilton stated that he had gone out and looked at the lights to get an 

idea of where the decorative lights are now.  His question was on how many of the 248 

lights should have smart control meters. 

 

Vice Chair Kennedy -Munger stated that according to the information, putting smart 

controls on all 248 lights would cost $30,000. 

 

Board Member Hamilton said that he feels that it will be challenging to identify each 

fixture that should be decorative and have the smart controls. 

 

Board Member Cole stated that the material listing the locations of the decorative lights 

that was done by Executive Assistant Diane Hamilton was fantastic.  It was easier to read 

and see where the lights are now, and which ones are decorative versus cobra heads. 

 

Town Manager Post stated that he had phoned previous Town Manager Don Willard and 

had a lengthy discussion with him on streetlights.  The reason there are so many 

decorative lights was because the Town at the time didn’t want residents from the 

outlying areas of the village to feel that they were being treated differently. 

 

Board Member Hamilton said that what he noticed when he rode around town looking at 

the streetlights, was that many of them are buried in the tree limbs and you really can’t 

see them very well. 

 

Town Manager Post asked the Board to please forward any comments that they receive to 

him.  He has received several comments from residents.  The residents on Warrenton 

Street want to keep the old lights and do not want to change them.  That is not possible 

according to the contractor. 

 

Board Member Hamilton stated that he feels that the right number of decorative lights 

that the Town should have would be between twenty-five to thirty-five. 

 

Vice Chair Kennedy-Munger said that she also had gone out and looked at the streetlights 

and observed that some of the decorative lights are hidden by transformers, wires and 

branches. 

 

Board Member Hamilton asked if it is worth the extra $1,100 per light to have so many 

decorative lights. 

 

Board Member Cole stated that he is thinking that there should be fifteen to twenty-five 

decorative lights in the commercial village district. 

 



 Rockport Select Board Meeting Minutes 

 Tuesday, November 12, 2019 

 

Page 5 of 6 

 

Board Member Hamilton said that the Town should also have a few in other parts of the 

town.   

 

Town Manager Post stated that he will need some numbers from the Board members by 

the beginning of December in order to get this to the Board for their December 9th Select 

Board Meeting. 

 

It was jokingly mentioned that maybe the Board should vote on it tonight. Town Manager 

Post stated that the absent members had asked to be present when the streetlights were 

voted on.  Each Board Member needs to go out and make a choice to present back to the 

Board at the next meeting. 

 

Resident Ethan Jones of Warrenton Street thanked the Board for the LED project and that 

he felt that it is a fiscally responsible project.    He stated that he had enjoyed listening to 

the Board members’ comments about the utilitarian cobra lights versus the decorative 

lights. He stated that he had seen a picture of two fixtures on a pole and was wondering if 

that is what the Town will have, or if it will be one light on each pole.  He also asked why 

the Town would install highway style lights on Warrenton Street when many tourists 

travel that street to go to the Samoset.  He feels that the Town should swap out the lights 

with something of equal or greater design and doesn’t want to downgrade the light style.   

 

Vice Chair Kennedy-Munger asked Town Manager Post if he had found out whether 

some of the decorative lights could be the two-light system shown in one of the 

illustrations, rather than the single light at the top of the utility pole.  Town Manager Post 

stated that that was not possible. 

 

Board Member Cole thanked him for his comments. 

 

VIII. ANNOUNCE FUTURE MEETINGS, OFFICE CLOSURES, ETC. 

 

• November 21, 2019 – Clerks’ Office closed for NEACTC Conference 

• November 27th and 28th closed for Thanksgiving Holiday 

• December 9, 2019 – Regular Select Board Meeting  

 

IX.    SELECT BOARD LIAISON REPORTS  

 

Board Member Hamilton stated that the Pathways Committee met last week.  The Harbor 

Committee will meet next week.  The Recreation Committee is still trying to get a 

meeting scheduled. 

 

Board Member Cole stated the Parks and Beautification Committee will be meeting 

tomorrow with new sketches for the library landscaping.  The Library Building 

Committee met with Nadine Cole, the interior designer, and she showed samples of tiles, 

carpets and paints.  The Investment Committee did not meet.  The Planning Board 

meeting will be next week.  It will be presented with a plan to put up a large building next 

to another one with a connector between the two buildings.   



 Rockport Select Board Meeting Minutes 

 Tuesday, November 12, 2019 

 

Page 6 of 6 

 

Vice Chair Kennedy-Munger stated that the Opera House Committee is scheduled to 

meet soon.  The ZBA is awaiting the written decision of the Library Appeal from their 

attorney. 

 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Board Member Cole moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:22 p.m.  Board Member 

Hamilton seconded the motion.  VOTE:  3 FOR, 0 OPPOSED  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 
LINDA M. GREENLAW 

TOWN CLERK as RECORDING SECRETARY 

 
 


